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August 13, 2025 
 
Mrs. Lori Rentschler, PE 
 
 
Lori.Rentschler@jacobs.com 
  
Subject:  Report of Geotechnical Exploration 

Pensacola Beach Gateway 
Escambia County, Florida 
LMJ File #: 25-227 

Dear Lori: 

This letter presents the results of our geotechnical exploration for the subject project. We 
understand that the project includes a toll-by-plate structure planned to span across the entry 
lanes to Pensacola Beach on Via De Luna Drive, just east of the existing toll plaza. The structure 
is planned to be an arch with two legs, one in the median, and one on the west side of the entry 
lanes. If any of this information changes or is incorrect, our office should be notified and changes 
in our recommendations may be needed.  

Subsurface Conditions 

We drilled three SPT borings near the proposed structure foundation areas to 46-56 feet. Two 
borings (B-1 and B-2) were drilled for a proposed sign spanning all lanes with foundations on 
each side. After drilling the first borings, the sign was changed to spanning the entry lanes, and 
we returned to the site and drilled B-3 near the current planned east foundation location. The 
borings were drilled in general accordance with ASTM D1586 using a truck mounted drill rig and 
were advanced between sampling using a “mud” jetting technique. The approximate boring 
locations are shown in Figure #1, and the boring logs are included in Figure #2.  

The borings encountered mostly sand with some silt in the upper 33 feet over silty sand and 
slightly silty sand with some clay and shell to the bottom of the borings at 46-56 feet. B-1 and B-
2 had traces of gravel, shell, and some pieces of what appeared to be coal and sand asphalt in 
the upper 3-6 feet. B-3 had some small pockets of wood and organics from 33 feet to the bottom 
of this boring at 56 feet. The borings were medium dense and loose in the upper 13-18 feet, dense 
and very dense to 33-38 feet, and erratic in density below this depth with loose and medium dense 
conditions to the bottom of the borings at 46-56 feet, and some very loose zones in B-1 and B-2 
between 38-53 feet.  

Groundwater was encountered in the borings from 4-8 feet below grade at the time of drilling. 
Groundwater levels will vary with the tide and changes in local rainfall and site drainage 
characteristics. We expect the site to flood during an extreme storm event (i.e. hurricane). 

Excavations  

We anticipate that sheet piles or casing will be used for foundation construction. The contractor 
is solely responsible for designing and constructing safe excavations that maintain stability during 
construction. All excavations should be constructed in accordance with the latest local, state, and 
federal safety regulations. We recommend that sheet piles (if applicable) be designed by a 
registered professional engineer licensed in the state of Florida and consider full hydrostatic 
pressure behind the piles and a dewatered condition in front.  
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Dewatering 

We anticipate the bottom of the foundation to be below the groundwater table, and the contractor 
should determine groundwater levels at the time of construction and be prepared to dewater as 
needed to construct the foundation. The borings encountered conditions suitable for dewatering 
using well points. 

Recommended Soil Parameters 

Our recommended soil parameters for foundation design are shown on the boring logs (Figure 
#2) and include the angle of internal friction (φ) and the soil’s estimated unit weight (γ) based on 
the SPT results, published correlations, and our experience with similar soils. Note that the unit 
weights provided are moist/buoyant above/near the groundwater table and buoyant below the 
groundwater table. These parameters can also be used for sheet pile design if applicable. 

Basis of Recommendations 

Recommendations rendered herein are based on assumed and/or design information available 
at the time of this report, the subsurface conditions encountered in the test boring, generally 
accepted geotechnical engineering principles and practices, and our experience with similar soil 
and groundwater conditions. Should final project information or existing conditions differ from the 
information used in this report or should any soil conditions not discussed in this report be 
encountered during construction, our office should be notified and retained so that this report can 
be modified as needed.  

This report and any correspondence are intended for the exclusive use of our client for the specific 
application to the project discussed. LMJ is not responsible for the interpretations, conclusions, 
or recommendations made by others based on the information in this report.  

Regardless of the care exercised in performing a Geotechnical Exploration, the possibility always 
exists that soil and/or groundwater conditions will differ from those encountered at the specific 
boring locations. In addition, construction operations may alter the soil conditions. Therefore, it is 
recommended that a representative from LMJ be involved during the construction phases 
discussed in this report.  

We hope this letter provides sufficient information for your current requirements. If you have any 
questions or comments, please feel free to give us a call. 
Sincerely, 

LARRY M. JACOBS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
 
 
Keith V. Jacobs, PE 
Principal Engineer   
Florida Reg. # 66577  
 
Attachments 
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